
 

Medlar Cottage, Faringdon Rd, Shrivenham 
General history so far 

By Neil B. Maw 

 

 
 

You could be forgiven for not noticing the large white house that is Medlar Cottage on the 

eastern edge of the village. Historically it was on the extremity of Beckett Park but was part 

of, and belonged to, the Barrington Estate. In her memoires, Augusta Barrington in 1861 

when referring to some nephews said: ‘the little boys were in the little house in the grounds of 

Beckett Estate called Medlar Cottage.’ (SHS N887 Page 58). It certainly was much smaller then but 

probably still much larger than we would call a cottage today.  

 

 
 



 

 

 

There is documentary evidence provided by the Beckett Estate Map commissioned by 

George Merryweather in 1815, confirming that the property was there then. The extract from 

the map above shows an ‘L’ shaped building.  

 

 

 

 
 

The photo above allows us to understand a little more about how the property may have 

developed, as it doesn’t appear to be a listed building. The front range nearest the road and 

the right-angle extension to the rear is likely to be the original house. (The little house that Augusta 

Barrington referred to and matches the 1815 Estate Map.) The range coming off the rear extension and the front 

were likely added later.  

 

The earliest reference we have for the property is from a newspaper advertisement that 

announced the departure of Mr Niel Campbell from Shrivenham. (Oxford Chronicle 15th October 

1842). The details of it provides a good assessment as to his wealth and status. The census 

that took place in June the year previous confirmed that he was 48 years of age and he had 

Elizabeth his wife with him. We don’t know how long he had been there. 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 

The next occupier for which we have documentary evidence was the Rev. Edward Harrance 

and we obtained his name from the 1844 Tithe Survey. His full name was the Rev. Edward 

Alexander Frederick Harrance and he was the Vicar of Longcott. It’s likely that he succeeded 

Niel Campbell. However, he left soon after when a newspaper advert appeared offering the 

house to let again by name and described: ‘standing in a very pretty laid out Garden and 

pleasantly situated within three minutes walk of the Church and one mile from the Railway Station.’ 
(Devizes & Wiltshire Gazette, 23rd January 1845.)  
 

There are several pieces of evidence to confirm that William Addison and his family left 

Beckett Home Farm in Watchfield (Now The Grange) in March 1846 and then occupied Medlar 

Cottage. (See SHS Listing No N2557). Both properties belonged to the Barrington Estate and 

newspaper advertisements confirmed that Medlar was unoccupied in 1845. It’s likely that 

William left the farm in Watchfield due to poor health as he died in 1848 and was buried in 

St Andrew’s Churchyard, just across the road, on the 8th May. His wife Elizabeth was 

recorded on the census for 1851 and was financially comfortable being described as an 

‘Annuitant.’ She died on 11th February 1854 and was buried with her husband. (See below) 



 

 

 
 

 

The rest of that decade is lean on information but in early 1861, an advertisement was placed 

in the newspaper for a sale of furniture belonging to Mrs Sheppard, ‘who is leaving the 

neighbourhood.’ But the census of April 1861, identified by the name of the property, listed 

that it was occupied by Elizabeth Pound, aged 65, who was a local Dressmaker. The 

Directory, Dutton Allen & Co for Berkshire 1863, listed that Alfred Sartoris was the occupier. 

Alfred Sartoris was part of the Barrington family and had a few years earlier married Mary 

Frances Barrington, the 7th child of William Keppel Lord Viscount Barrington (6th). But he 

wasn’t there for long as he moved in to Shrivenham House at about that time. (Memoires of 

Augusta Barrington SHS N887). In the Barrington Estate Map of 1866, it looked like the cartographer 

had chosen to depict the premises in a block rather than with detail. But it was the start of 

occupation by farmers and the occupier was listed as George Lewis 

  

 



 
 

The census of 1871 showed that there was then a complete farming family of Lewis’ in 

Medlar Cottage, farming the land on the perimeter of the estate, Barnacle Park and various 

other fields that have since been built upon. Samuel was still there in 1878 as recorded by 

Kelly’s Directory. 

 

 

 
 

The Kelly’s Directory of 1881 recorded that Mrs Fowler was the occupier and the census for 

that year confirmed it. The Fowlers were still there in 1884 when a newspaper article 

extolled the talents of young Mr Harcourt Fowler of Medlar Cottage, Shrivenham. He was 

an under-graduate of Jesus College, Cambridge and was presented with a, ‘handsome gold 

keyless watch and massive chain, in recognition of his valuable services in connection with the Jesus 

College Musical Society.’ (Faringdon Adver 5th Jan 1884). 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 

And the pleasant events continued in the summer of 1884 when Catherine Fowler’s 

daughter was married at Shrivenham as the article above notes. (Witney Express 14th August 1884).  

 

The 1891 census listed that George Eagle was the next resident and he was the Stationmaster 

at Shrivenham Station. The Kelly’s Directory of 1895 listed that he was still there then and 

provided his name in full as George Edward Windsor Eagle. We know that he was still the 

Stationmaster in 1901 when he was called to give evidence at a private action at High 

Wycombe County Court. (South Bucks Standard 11th July 1902). But he had moved out of Medlar 

Cottage before then as the census for 1901 listed that William King was then in residence. 

However, the property was not listed by name so a newspaper article from the following 

year was most useful in identification. William King was the Butler at Beckett House which 

had been the target of a burglary and William was called to give evidence at the subsequent 

trial of the accused. (Faringdon Adver 30th August 1902). 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

Amos Batchelor of Medlar Cottage described himself as a, ‘Second-Horseman and Groom, 

under Stud Groom or Coachman,’ when he placed an advertisement in the local paper. But 

there was nothing stated as to the purpose of the advert only that he was recommended by 

the Hon. W. Shute Barrington. (Faringdon Adver 29th June 1907).  

 

By the census of 1911, Henry Lionel Pigott was in occupation, aged 33 and described as a 

Land Agent. With him was his wife Mary Gwendoline, aged 36 and servants, Rebecca 

Griffiths and Mary Ann Roberts. 

 

The Kelly’s Directory for 1915 listed that William Reginald Shute Barrington was the 

occupier of Medlar Cottage. William or Bill, as he preferred to be known among his friends, 

was the owner of it, given to him by his parents at the age of 21 (1894) as a hunting lodge. 

However, we know from papers within the Barrington Collection within the British Library, 

that his attentions lay elsewhere and during the First World War he was stationed in India. 

(For more information see, ‘Beckett & the Barringtons,’ published by SHS N1481). But by 1927, an advertisement 

in the newspaper showed that he was clearing the house out. (North Wilts Herald 30th September 

1927). On the same day, the same was happening at Beckett House, hence the reference to it 

in the cutting below. In 1932 we have a newspaper reference to prize-winner, ‘Phyliss Snook 

of Medlar Cottage,’ (North Wilts Herald 16th December 1932), so it may that the house was being 

prepared to be re-let again, or perhaps sold. At the moment, we have no information to 

confirm either case. 

 



We move forward a few years to information gleaned from the records of Shrivenham 

Primary School, where we learn that in 1961, Major J.A. Robertson MBE, occupied the 

property with his family. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

At the moment, that is a far as we can go. If any reader can provide further information on 

Medlar Cottage or would like to comment on anything stated in this article, please contact 

us: 

 

info@shrivenhamheritagesociety.co.uk 

 

 

***** From the Electoral Register of 1978-9 listed is John G. Pike and Necta E. Pike **** 
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